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LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license or certificate as they relate to safety and/or 
safeguards and to compliance with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license 
or certificate.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, 
and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows: 

 1.  Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified. 

 2.  Previous violation(s) closed. 

 3.  Reported events reviewed 

 

4.  The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being 
cited because they were self-identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the 
remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise discretion, were satisfied. 
Non-Cited Violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 

 

5.  During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of 
NRC requirements and are being cited. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to 
posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. 
(Violations and Corrective Actions) 

 

LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FOR ITEM 5, ABOVE 
 

 I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the inspector will be taken to correct the violation(s) identified.  This 
statement of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective 
steps which will be taken, date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to the NRC will be 
required, unless specifically requested. 

Title Printed Name Signature Date

LICENSEE/CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

   

NRC INSPECTOR Richard Gibson /RA/ 4/20/09 
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6.  INSPECTOR(S): Richard Gibson 

7.  INSPECTION PROCEDURES USED: 88025 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

 

Summary of Plant Status 
 

The Global Nuclear Fuels facility converts uranium hexafluoride into uranium dioxide and fabricates fuel 
assemblies for use in commercial nuclear power reactors.  During this inspection, the plant was shutdown 
for a scheduled maintenance outage.  This routine, announced inspection included evaluation of plant 
maintenance and surveillance of safety controls.  The inspection involved observations of work activities, 
review of selected records, and interviews with plant personnel.  The inspection identified the following 
aspects of the licensee programs as outlined below:  

 
Maintenance / Surveillance of Safety Controls 
 
• The inspector interviewed personnel and reviewed records for preventative and annual maintenance, and 

functional tests to ensure the adequacy of work orders, maintenance procedures, test frequency, 
maintenance and calibration of test equipment, and adequacy of acceptance criteria.  During preventative 
maintenance of a uranium dioxide powder press, the gadolinium slugger, and the dry scrap recovery vibro-
mill lid, the inspector determined that maintenance workers demonstrated adequate knowledge of the work 
orders and procedures, and that the surveillance test results met acceptance criteria. 

 
• The inspector observed field activities associated with the annual calibration and peak verification of the 

hydrogen fluoride (HF) pipe detectors at the HF building.  In addition, the inspector observed maintenance 
technicians perform a functional test and calibration of the nitrogen pressure switch for the main nitrogen 
supply system.  The inspector also observed the replacement of piping in the HF building and determined 
that workers demonstrated adequate knowledge of the work order and performed work in accordance with 
the work orders and procedures.  The inspector reviewed the change request (CR 4362) and the work 
order for the modification of the dry scrap recovery furnace inlet exhaust.  The inspector noted that the 
contractor conducted hot work with an approved hot work permit and a fire watch.  No safety issues were 
identified. 

 
• The inspector reviewed maintenance records for various equipment designated as items relied on for 

safety (IROFS) in the DCP.  The inspector noted the work orders were completed within the required time 
frames called out for these IROFS in the maintenance work management system (MAXIMO).  The 
inspector also noted the work orders contained adequate instructions to perform calibrations of the IROFS.  
The inspector determined that the results were within acceptance criteria. 

 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Continued) 
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Exit Meeting Summary 
 
• The inspection scope and results were summarized on Thursday, April 9, 2009, with Lisa Price and 

members of her staff.  No dissenting comments were received. 
 
Key Points of Contact 
 
Name Title 
L. Price Facility Manager, GNF CEO 
S. Fuller GNF Chief Operating Officer 
H. M. Knight Manager, Fuels EHS 
S. Murray Manager, Licensing & Liabilities 
P. D. Ollis Licensing Engineer, Licensing & Liabilities 
 
 
List of Items Opened, Closed, Discussed 
 
Item Number Status  Description 
VIO 2008-08-02 Closed Failure to perform a functional test of an IROFS before closing a change 

request.  The inspector reviewed the tap root investigation report 
conducted by the licensee and noted that the corrective actions were to 
update the Configuration Management Program procedure (P/P 10-10) 
and CMTrac to reflect updated methodologies, and provide updated 
training and that updated methodology were communicated.  Based on 
interviews and review of documentation and corrective actions provided 
by the licensee, this violation is closed. 
 

VIO 2008-04-01 Closed Failure to assure double contingency protection during maintenance 
operations on the DCP Line 2A cooling hopper hatch valves.  This 
violation was closed in NRC Inspection Report 2008-206, but was 
incorrectly noted as VIO 70-1113/2007-02-01. 
 

VIO 2008-04-02 Closed Failure to establish adequate procedures, determine criticality safety 
limits for controlled parameters, or assess normal and credible abnormal 
conditions prior to performing maintenance operations on the DCP Line 
2A cooling hopper hatch valves.  This violation was closed in NRC 
Inspection Report 2008-206, but was incorrectly noted as VIO 70-
1113/2007-02-03. 
 

VIO 2008-04-03 Closed Failure to properly issue an approved procedure prior to performing 
maintenance on the DCP Line 2A cooling hopper hatch valves.  This 
violation was closed in NRC Inspection Report 2008-206, but was 
incorrectly noted as VIO 70-1113/2007-02-04. 
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